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- * -ANNEKE JANS BOGARDUS

N the year 1630, when Pieter Minuit was
Governor or Director-General of New
Netherlands, under *“the Right Flonorable
Prudent Lords, the Lords Dirvectors of the
Hounorable West Tudia Company, of the
Uuited Provinces of the Netherlands,”
there landed at New Amstevdam a sturdy

Dutchman named Roelott Jansen. He

had been a man of some position, andeven
of official standing, in his native town of
Maasland.

-The spirit of adventure, however, was
abroad. Emigrants of hizh aud low de-
gree were leaving old howes for new ficlds
of enterprise and industry. ~ Bold discov-
erers were revealing new wonders of the
sea aod land, and bringing to light the
hidden mysteries of the geographical
world. New maps were planned; mwew
enterprises stimulated the curious or the
avaricious.

Hardy mariners were bringing into the
Zuyder Zeethe spoils of eaptured galleons,
the golden fruits of Mexico aud Peru, and
adding new domain to the now independ-
ent and triumphant United Provinees of
the Netherlunds.  Others cheerily sailed
away, sanguine to discover a new passage
to China by the wnorthern seus. The
houschold gods were being disturbed from
their old nooks.  The rich pluntations of
America, the golden Ind, aud the balmy
tropical isles were beckoning to the old
European to come and rescue them from
barbariaun hordes. El Doradosand fount-
ains of youth and spice islands and Gol-
condas glittered through many a dream
and stirred many a restless spirit.  Colo-
nists ‘were ﬂuchg over the Fastern and
Western worlds from the erowded Furo-
pean cities, some for spiritnal, some for
political freedom, most of them for com-
merce and gain.

Roelotf Jansen caught the spirit of un-
rest. He had a strong voung wife, will-
ing to brave the seas. and a little fum-
ily, and theve was a future to make for
them; so they bade farewell to the futhee-
land and sailed for the Dutehman’s new
ficld of adventure and fortune, * Nieuw
Nederland.”

Jansen procured a position as one of
the superintendents at Rensselaerswyck,
on the Hudson, the great territory grant-
ed as a' patroonship to Kilian van Reuns-
selaer, the rich diamond polisher of Am-

ster ’;m

AND HER FAR)M.

Jansen's name was per petunted theve in
that of the kill or ercel: ealled *Roeloty
Jansen's Kill,” which rans into the Hud-
son River between Red Hook and the .-
sent city of Hudson,

After a sojourn of a few years, filling
the duties of his post under the p: Ltnmn 3
agents at Rensselacrsw vek, Jansen seems
to have moved with his family to New
Amsterdam, having obtained from Divector
Van’lmllu' mlbjb a geound brief or pat-
ent for the farm or Bomwz_/ of about
sixty-two acres which has Leen for nearly
two hundred years a prominent bone of

contention.

Roeloff Jansen did not long enjoy his
new possessions; he was called to another
world about the year 1637 or 1638, Ieaving
behind him five sturdy little children, and
a buxom, attractive widow, then and now
widely known as Mrs. Annetj-) or.\nneke
Jans.

The little colony, where there was a
comparative scarcity of the fair sex, ebuld
not well atford to let any of its members
remain idle. A female, too, in those bus-
tling and dangerous duys required protec-
tion; besides that, the w idow wasof a live-
1y and coqnothsh disposition, and fuir to
look upon.  She reguived sympathy in
those stirring times, when the red man
usad to malke eccentric and sudden visits
to the settlement, and no man's life was
safe, and no man’s property sceure.

These inducements, and the zentle
pleadings of Hymen, in the person of
Domine Everavdus Bozardus, soon caused
the widow to dry her tears, and within a
year of lier beveavement the subject of our
mouograph could Loast of being the wife
of oue of the most prominent and remark-
able characters in the early history of our
city.

The widow, however, was of a prudent
turn of mind, and before her murviage to
her new hushand shie took carve to make
a proper settlement of her estate.  Her
marriage settlement is still anmong our
archives. By it she settled 1000 crmld-
ers upon her children by the first miar-
riage out of their fathicr's estate. The
settlement thus concludes: **She, Anna
Jans, and E. Bogardus also promise to
bring up the children, with the help of
God, decently, provide them necessary
clothing and food, keep them at school,
let them leaen reading, writing, and
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good trade.” The contract is witnessed

by Divector Kieft, Councillor De la Mon-

-

tague, and Cornelius van Tienlioven, the
most distinguished mnen of the colony.
Domine Everardus Bogardus, the sec-
ond husband of Mvs. Anucke Juus, caune
over from Hollund in the year 1633 with
Wouter van Twiller, who succeeded Pieter
Minuit as Director-Generval of the little

.
g3

It was built of stone, aliout seventy-two
feet long by fifty-two feetin breadth, and
was erected under conteact with John and
Richurd Ogden, of Stamford, Connecticut.

Director Kieft, lucking money for the
purpose of building the cliwveh, bethought
himof an expedient to have sulaceiptions
taken for the sumne by tuking advantage
of the conditivn of the gueasts at a certain

LOOKING SOUTH OVER BOGARDUS FAbM.

Dutch colony. He was the second estab-
lished clergyman in the settlement, and
was a man of educatinn and intelleet, as
well as oue of a very determined and in-
dependent chavacter. Iis position was an
important and distinguished one. He
held his trust divectly from the directors of
the Company in Holland; and when he
differed from the local government in mat-
ters either of a moral or political nature,
he did not hesitate to assert his opinions
and enforce his views openly and vigor-
ously. L

The primitive church building where hie
first exercised his functions was a plain
barn-like structure on the rviver-side, sita-
ated on what is now known as Pearl
Street, between Whitehall and Broad
streets.  There he enforead the reformed
theological views promulgated at the Syn-
od of Dort, until, on account of the edi-
fice being exposed to the attucks of the In-
dians, i was deemed prudent that a more
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wedding festival given by Domine Bo-
gardus in honor of the marriage of his
wife's danghter Sara.

A chronicle of the time thus naively
gives us the story of the subscription:

*“The Divector thought this a gond time
for his purpose, aud set to work after the
fourth or fifth drink; and he himself set-
ting a liberal example, let the wedding
guests sign whatever they were disposed
to give toward the church. Each then
with a light head subscribed away at a
handsome rate, one competing with the
other; and altlhough some heartily re-
pented it when their senses came back,
they were obliged to pay; nothing could
avail againat it.”

Although the Domine was a man of iu-
tellect, and delivered good sermous, as the
chronicles of the day attest, and filled
many positions of trust and responsibility
for his fellow-townsmen, like all Dutch-
mien of the day he was not averse to zood
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When Cornelius van Vorst, who came
out as Michael Puau, the Putroon of Pavo-
nia’s Intendant, and settled at Ahasimus
in a new frame house thatehed with cat-
tails, the dignitaries of church and state
came over from New Amsterdam to pay
him a visit. Theve was the Director Wou-
ter vau Twiller, who, we ave told, was fond
of good wines, Domine Bogardus, and Cap-

tain De Vries, the bold navigator, whore-

- lates the incident. -

Vaun Vorst, it is said, scrved up a lot of
good Bordeaux wines that he had brought
over with him to entertzin his distin-
guished guests, who, warming up under
their many potaticns, grew very disputa-
tious with their host with reference to a
murder which had just occurred at Puso-
nia. As the drinking grew deeper, how-
ever, the dispute grew less acrimonious,
and soon they parted such good friends
that as they entered their row-boat to stavt
back over ‘the river, Van Vorst, to show
his appreciation of such distinguished vis-
itors, fired for them a salute from a swivel
which he had mounted on a pillar in front
of his house. De Vries recounts that a
spark unfortunately flying ou the voof,
set it in a blaze, and in half an hour the
first house erected in Communipaw was
burned to the ground.

As T have before stated, the Domine
was also a man of fearless and determined
character, perhaps a little too much in-
clined to assert himself and lis spiritual
authority in opposition to the local gov-
ernment.

Director Van Twiller's incapacity was
a matter of general comment. De Vries,

‘& contemporary, says that the Company

bad promoted him from a clerkship to a
commandership to act * farces” in Nieuw
Nederland.

Domine Bogardus was épposed to the

policy of Van Twiller in the province,and’

did not refrain from speaking his mind to
him. He is once stated to hiave sent Van
Twiller 2 niessage denouncing him as **a
child of the Devil,” and threatened him
with such a shake from the pulpit ou the
following Sunday as *‘ would make them
both shudder.”

The Domine was a hold man, too, un-
der Divector Kielt, and, we are told, free-
Iy expressed himself against the Indiun
massacres, covetousness, and other excess-
es of the government, and particularly
for the bringing on the terrible Tudian
war of Pavonin in 1613, which, leading to

bloody reprisals, nearly extinguished the
settlement. The Director, for revenge,
charged the Domine with drunkenness,
and with dishonoring the pulpit by his
passionate behavior, and also that his ser-
mons were nothing but the *“rattling of
olid wives' storics, drawn out from a dis-
tatf,” and that he was a great eackler,
who spoke witliout tolerating contradic:
tion, and that he was a seditions man who
sought nothing else than to excite people
and the servants of the Company against
him who was their sovereign ruler.

The Domine, in his turn, fulminated
against the Director frony his pulpit.
“What are the great men of the coun-
try,” said he, in oue of his sermious, *but
vessels of wrath and fountains of woe and
trouble? They think of nothing but to
plunder the property of otlhers, to dismiss,
to banish, to transport to Iolland.”

Kieft and his abettors were by these
denunciations actually drviven from the
church; but he caused drums to be beat
and even cannon to be diselirged during
the service, and encouraged nine-pins,
leaping, and noisy amusements among the
soldiers.

The Domiue, however, continued his
denunciations of the Divector, who final-
1y, finding that the colonists sympathized
with the mninister, caused the latter to be
summoned beforea court, and chiarged him
with inciting rioting and vebellion and
uinbecoming conduct. The Domine re-
fused at first to plead before a court, but
finally put in a plea to the jurisdiction.
The interference of mutual friends, how-
ever, finally settled the muatter.

The marriage:of Mrs. Auneke Jans to
the Domine naturally excited the envy of
other ladies of the settlement, and they be-
gan, as usual with éuvious people, to gos-
sip about her. Soon after her marriage
she went to visit Jacob van Corluer's
family, and learning that Grictje Reiuiers
van Salce, a woman of poor reputation,
was in the house, she coneluded to vetive.
About the same titue the Domine com-
menced an action for church dues against
Authouny Jansen van Salee, the woman's
husband. These two matters exasperated
Van Salee and his wife. She gave it out
through all the neighborhood that the win-
Ister's wife,on leaving Van Corlaer™s home.
wlen pussiug a blacksmith's shop, had ex-
po-ed her ankles more than was necessa-
ry to avoid the mud. She also accused
the Domine of making a false oath. The
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° LISPENARD MEADQWS.

Domine, with his usual determination,
then began an action of slaunder against
Van Salee and wile, and produced wit-
pesses to show that Mrs, Domiue had
flourished her petticoat no move than was
necessary to clear the mud.

" The court pronounced judgment that
Grietje Reiniers should make public declu-
ration in the Fort, at the sounding of the
bell, that shie knew the minister to be uan
honest and pious man, aud that she had
lied falsely, and further condemned her
for the costs and three guilders for the
poor. Van Salee wus also condemned in
costs and a fine, and adjudged *‘unot to
carry auy weapous this side of Fresh-wa-
ter Brook, and not to offend the minister
further either in words or acts.” Van Sa-
lee was also adjudgzed to declare in open
court that he had nothing to say acainst
Mrs. Bogardus, and acknowledged lier to
be an honest, virtuous woman, and pronm-
ised that he would never say anything
more against lier or her husband.

If people of modern days had the mor-
al courare of the good Domine and his
wife, there would be less of those two
wean and dangerous elements in a com-
munity, gossip and slander.

The Domine had another rather dis-
agreeable suit on his hands. One Jacob
Govertsen, an admiring friend of Mrs.
Bo".u'dm, had presentul her with a hand-
some piece of cloth. It appears that Ja-
cob’s adinivation was considerably in ex-
cess of his peeuniavy ability, for we find
iz 1639, about a year after the marviage,
that one Maryn Andiraesen sued the Dom-
ine for the debt due plaintitf by Jueob
Govertsen for the price of the cxurh on
the ground, the record veads, *that Go-

e

vertsen could not make a present till he
paid his debts, and whosnaver received
such presents was bound to pay his delts.”
The court ordered that the plaintitt be
only paid pro ratu out of Govertsen's
estate. .

The Domine was also several times sued
for slander; once by Tuomus Hulll thwe
areat tobucco planter, for saving that
Hall's tobacco wus bad.  He wus also
sued by Deacsu Olott van Cortlundt for
saving that he, Van Cortlawdt, had en-
riched himself with the Cotpany’s prop-
erty. The parties, after long arbitration,
were recouciled.

The Domine's piety was illustrat:d in
all the detuils of his business and life.
Iu a lease between him and Robert aud
Mark Meuloft, the Douine. amonr other
things, is to stock the lund with gouts and
pigs. The lease then reads: “'of which
animals they shall have the use for four
yeuars, provided that hal the ifucrease
which God will gruant shull belong to Ee-
erardus Bogurdus, and the other half to
Cthe lessees; and if it happens, vhich Gol
Sorbid, that oue or more of the aforesail
gouats or hogs come tu die, Domine Bo-
gardus shall have the cuviee frowm the in-
creasc to his full number.”™

The Domine’s charucter and attributes
are so vividly portrayed through the an-
nals of the ancient colony that one

easily picture hiut to the eyve.

il
We may

imagine ourselves seeing him some fine
Sunday mornine coteins out of his house
Marvckvelt, si '.:.-':z:

in the
Whitehall Stree

to the chiarvel.

in the preseut
toue, on his way

e dicnidied,

vorely

RIRTITRSY ‘.t! a detevimd v expression
M Y .
Duie , rebivved by a
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kindly eye and a benicnant smile, elad in
a long black serge coat with large black
buttous running to the bottom; a broad
felt hat covers his brow, and black worst-
ed stockings incase his sturdy limbs.  His
portly figure and somewhat roseate face
show that it was no part of the theology
of the Synod of Dort that there shonld be
an entire abstinence from the flesh pots
of Egypt. Ou his arm is Muvs. Auneke, in
her waist-jacket of dark eloth, with the
little pendent tails behind.  Her petticoat
is of purple cloth; her neat colored stock-
ings, with clocks on the side, ave incased
in high-heeled shoes, betokening that she
was a person of consequence; in her
hand is her silver-clasped Bible, brought
with her from the old countr A :’md from
her girdle on one side (h_pcmls by silver
‘chain the Psalm-book, and on the other
side hangs a purse embroidered by her
own skillful hand; over one arm haugs
her yellow and red rain-hood, to protect
against a possible showar!

Justin front of b : i
1y Joht \nnes de I Montagne, the Hugue-
not phosteinn, and a lear vwl and vigilant
Ber ol the Councll, and the rightd

man of

4 bsowalline evave-

Ty A Tee
Divector vy buol il I

IN THE FORT.

nelis vander Huyzghens, the Schout Fis-
caal, whose office corresponded with our
attorney-gencral and sherift.

Before the Domine and his wife walks
their pretty daughter Fytje, in her striped
petticoat and golden head plaques, then a
ruddy miss of sixteen, holdiuyg by the hand
her sturdy little brotlier Cornelis, then six
years of age, in his knee-brecches and sil-
ver-buckled shoes; near them are Dr.
Hans Kicrstede, the leading surgeon of
New Awmsterdam, and his wife Sara, who
is daughter of Mirs. Bogardus b_'_.- her first
husband.

Domine Bogardus met with a “sad end-
inc. He bade favewell to his wife and
children for a visit to the vaderland, and
took passage in the ship Princess, in the
year 1647, His old antagonist ex-Divect-
or Kieft was also a passenger, returning
with o fortune of ill-gotten gains extract-
ed from a misgoverned province. The
vessel mistook the channel, and both Kielt
and the Dansine nevished by shipwreeck on
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fricnds oun the Hudson. She accordingly
took up her residence at Beverwyek, now
the site of part of the present Albany, and
sold hier house in New Amsterdam. She
was at this time, doubtless, a lady in very
comfortable circumstances for those times.
Besides her farm and her two houses, she
was the proprietor of inany acres of land
rear the present villuge of Newtown, on
Loag Island, and also ot Hell Gate, where
sheowned eighty acres granted Lerin 1654
She acquired, also, land at Beverwyck,
and from the provisions of her will we
may couclude that she was quite well to
do in the world. .

She must have lived several years at
Beverwyck, and died there in the year
1663, about thirty years afterher avrivalin
the province. Her will was made at Be-
verwyck befove Dirck van Schelluyne, the
notary, and two of her friends, Ratger Ja-
cobs van Schoonderwert and Everet Wen-
dell, as shelay, according to the recitals in
the will, *on her bed in a state of sick-
ness, but perfectly sensible and in the full
possession of her mental powers, and ca-
pable to testate, and recommending her
immortal soul fo the Almighty God, her
Creator and Redeemer, and cousigning her
body to Christian burial.” Her remains
were interred in the yard of the old Dutch

urch in Hudson Street in Albany, and
there they still ave.

Mrs. Bogardus had four children by the
first and four by her sccoud marriage.
There were Jan, Sava, Catrina, and Fytje
Jansen by the first, and Jonas, Wilhem,
Coruelis, and Pieter Bozardus by the sec-

ond. There seems to have been also a’

daughter Anunitje by the first marriage,
who probably predeceased her mother.
Her daughter Catrina marricd Johannes
Pistersen vaun Brugh; she was widow of
Lucas Rodenberg when her mother died.
Sara Roeloffsen, the daughter who
married Surzeou Hans Kierstede, lived on
the present northeast corner of Pearl and
Sheafterward married
Cornelis van Borsum, the owuer of the
f'f_l'r)‘ to Long Island, and subsequently
Eibert Elbertsen. She was a great pro-
ﬁcx'cnt. in the Indian languages, and acted
3 1nterpreter between Stuy vesant and the
sopus and the Wappingers, the 4gh-in-
Jack, the Long Island, and the Staten Isl-
and Indians, when their treaty was made
with Stuyvesant in the spring of 1661,
The great session was held in the coun-

tleh. N
¢l chamboerat Fort Ansterdam, wheve the
Vel LhX Ko yuie - %

various representative chiefs assenibled.
That wus the last treaty of peans hetvrenn
the Hollanders and the Indians, and was
signed under a salute from the guns of the
Fort. Another daughter, Fytje, dicd be-
fore her mother. Then ther: wus Cornelis
Bogardus, who married Helena Toller, of
Albuny, where he resided till Liis deuth in
1666; William Bogurdus, whe was clurk
in the Secretary’s office at New Amster-
dam, and subsequently postmzster of the
Euglish colony there. Pieter was the
youngest, born in 1645: he afterward lived
at Albany, aud in 1673 was a magistrate
there.’

By the pl‘ovisidns of her will the first

four, Roeloff Jansen's clildran, are tn di-
vide amony them 1000 zuild:ss, to be real-
ized out of procceds of the furm on Mun-
hattan Island. She also gives to her son
Jan, who is yet unmarried, a bed and a
milch cow, and to Jonas and Pieter a 1ot
and house in Beverswyek, besides to euch
a bed and a milch cow as an equiva-
lent for what her married children haid
received. Shegives to het graudehildren,
RoelotT Kierstede, Annatie van Brugh,
and Gametje aud Rachel Hartzers, and
to Fytje Bogardus, a silver mnaz each, As
to the rest of the propertyr, the children
and descendants are to share alike by rep-
resentation. :

THE FARM.

The farm called the Domine's Bousrery,
whicli has been the subj:ct of much coc-
tention, was granted by Governor Van
Twiller to Roeloff Jansen and bis wife in
1636. It was then in a very rough state,
and had never been cultivated.

The grant was confirmsd in 1854 by
Director Stuyvesant. by a patent to Mus.
Anuctje Jans, as widow of Everardus Bo-
gavrdus. .

The description in the patent from Scuy-
vesant is in two portions, bounded tozeth-
er northerly by the partition line of - old
Jan's land,” east by the Cripple Bush and
“the Kalekhoeck,” westerly by the river,
and soutlierly by the posts and ruils of the
Company’s land.

On the 27th March, 1657, three vears aft-
er the occupation by the Enziish. Govern-
or Niclols made a confirmatory patant to
the heirs of 3rs. Bogardus, reciting the
oviginal grant from Van Twilier. The
boundaries in this patent are of two pieces,
one bounded ou **old Jun's land” and the
swump on the north and ewst the viver on


http:Stu.p�cs:l.nt
http:ttt':.l.tr
http:marrio.ge
http:te"t:;.tc

842

the west, and by a line dvawn from the
house by the strand side on tlhie south.
The other plece adjoining aund south of
the former, is bounded south by the fence
of the land belonf’m" to the Company, and
by the ** Chalke Hool\e on the east. The
‘Kripple-bosh, or swamp, above referred to,
was oune of the outlets of Fresh-water
Pond, in the vear of the present City Hull;
it covercd the land now occupied by the
lower purt of Canal Street, and was ufter-
~ ward known as part of Lispenard’s mea-
dows.

As tmnsfeued by the above patents, the
farm is described as consisting of 32 mor-
geus, or 62 acres.

The description given would compre-
hend a tract between a line drawn near
the north side of Warren Street on the
south, and Canal Street, or perhaps Des-
brosses Street,on the north on the west by
the river, and on the cast b} a serieg of ir-
regular lines west of Broudway. -

The southern boundary was the Cowmn-
pauy’s, Duke's, or King's or Queen’s farin,
as it was variouly termed, running from
Fulton Street novth to Warren Street,and
bounded by the river and Broadway.

‘This term King's or Queen's farm in
subsequent conveyances and patents was
supposed to mclude, and it seems to have
been conceded in most of the actious
brought, the Domine’s Bouwery above
descubed, although properly the latter
was no part of the Company's or King's
farm.

The eastern bounda.n was partially
some high ground called the Kalek- -Hoccls,

HARPER'S NEW MONTHLY MAGAZINE,

or Lime-shell Point, ettcndmﬂ' to the
pond, and also the swamp, while to the
nor th was the a“amp and Jan Cele's laud,
“old Jan's land,” as it wus called. I,

1 66 we find Tumt._) Church selling
twelve years’ lease of ““old Juhn's land,*

We give herewith a fac-simile of gy,
advertisement of the'sale published ju t). -
New York Ga:ette

T O BE S OLD,

T Vendue, onTusflay ther2th i ini,

+ at:the Houfe of Mr Jchn 'thra:ns,
near My Lafpenards$ A T.eafs from Tri-
nity Church, for OId John's Land, for 12
Ycars to come. §irenanes 2

All this northeru boundary, however, is
vague, and it is claimed that the Anneks
Jans family owned far; above the Des-
brosses or Canal Street line,’to a line on
Christopher Street, the same being em-
braced in another tract called the Domi-
ne's Hook. Idonot find that this owner-
ship ix clearly made out by the records.
and the location of Dowine’s Hook hus
not been determined to be iu this region.

The next deed we find is one from the
heirs in March, 1670.

The deed reads that for a valuable con-
sideration H. Jolannes van Brugh, in
rizht of Catrina Roeloft his wife, Wil
hem Bogardus for himself and his bro-
thers Pieter and Jonas Bogardus, aund
Cornelis van Borsum, in right of Sara

Roeloff his wife, and by assignment of

Pieter Bogardus, convey toColonel Fraucis

-~
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Lovelace the Domine’s Bouwery of about
sixty-two acres, as deseribed in the deed
from Stuyvesant.

This deed from the heirs, it will be ob-
served, did not convey the share of Cor-
nelis Bogardus, who was not mentioned
in the deed, aud who at that time wus de-
ceased. .

It will be remembered that in 1673, two,

years after thisdeed was given by the heirs
to Governor Lovelace, the Dutch recover-
ed possession of New Amsterdam from the
Eaglish by a sudden attack, and held it
about a year. On its restovation to the
English in 1674, under thie Treaty of West-
minster, Governor Andros, representing
the Duke of York as proprictor, took pos-
session of the furm in his behalf, and, as it
is understood, seized and confiscated, in be-
half of the Duke, Governor Lovelace's es-
tates, including this Bouwery.

The fact of this deed haviug been given
by the heirs to Governor Lovelace seems
to have been for a long time forgotten.
In December, 17585, it was discovered by the
Trinity Church trustees, and its contents
communicated to some of the heirs as if it
was a complete answer to their elaims.

It does not appear that Lovelaee’s title
wus ever directly conveyed either to the
Duke, the crown, or to Trinity Church;
but the transfer to him seems to have been
treated practically as if it was a deed to
the Duke of York, or, what is the same, to
the crown. .

" Various leases had Leen made of the
farm down to the period above last noted.
In1639 it was leased to Richard Bruduell,
for a tobacco plantation. It was also
leased by the Domine to Richard Fouls,
with vacious cattle. At an early period it
was leased to one Jan van Lieden, for
the rent of two hozs. In 1638 we find

that Mrs. Bogardus, through ber son-in-

law Van Brugh as her attoruey, under-
took to collect this rent before the court
sitting at New Amsterdam. In the re-
corded procecdings she demands of Lau-

. reusDuyts, as assignee of the lease, the full
reat of the Bouwery, which she leased to |

Jan van Lieden. .
The defendant answers that he is unot

indebted, as Mrs. Anneke ad released him

frowm the rent, for which he was to pa¥
tio hogs, aud that he hath paid one. The
court very properly ordered him to pay
over the other hog.

In November, 1631, a lease was made by
the agents of the widow to Evert Pels,

with divers cattle and horses, showings that
the farm was in good keeping. The rent
was 225 zuilders and thirty pounds of but-
ter.

In 1677 it was leased by Governor Au-
dros to Dirck Secker for sixty bushels of
wheat, under. the nawme of the Dule's
Bouwery.

In 1697 Governor Fletcher leascd ' the
King's farm” to the corporalion of Trin-
ity Church, for a rent of sixty bushels of
wheat, ‘for seven years from August 1,
1698.

The leasé by Governor Fletcher was
deemed by the government an extrava-
gant grant and a breach of his trust, inas-
much as the King's farm was theretofove
applied to supply the Governors for the
time being with grain, amd to provide
timber for ships.

The Earl of Bellamont, who succeeded
Fletcher, had orders to useall legal menns
to break up such grants, aud by the Colo-
nial Legislature a bill was passed in 1699
vacating the above grant, and forbiddiug
Colonial Governors from making any
grants of the King's furm, and certain
other public property, for o longer peried
thau his term of office; any other grants
of the same were to be null and void.
Subsequently, during Lord Cornbury’sad-
ministration, in 1702, an act was passed re-
‘pealing the above act for vacating the ex-
travagant grants; but Queen Anne, by an
order in June, 1708, confirmed the vacating
act of 1699, and not thp’act repealing it,
and resumed possession of allthe lauds for
the crown. '

In 17C0, Lord Cornbury, who was a zeal:
ous protector of the Established Church,
leased the Queen's farm to Trinity Church
for as long a period as hie should be Gov-
cruor, and in 1704 Trinity Church sublet
it to one George Ryerse for five years, at a
reat of £30.

We now come dowa to the grant in fee
of the year 1705. We find the church in
actual possession,under the lease from Lord
Cornbury, of what they claim as not only
theold Company’s or Duke’s farm, extend-
ing from Fulton Street north to Warven
Street, but also of what was comprehend-
ed under the name of the Domine’s Bouw-
ery, extending north to Canal Street.

In the year 1705 the grant was made to
the church under which they claim to
kold adversely aud in hostility to all other
intorests. Tt was a pateut from the Co-
loniul Governov, Corn";)ury, as acting for
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Queen Anne, to the corporation of Trinity
* Church of the tract known as the Queen’s
farm, as then in the occupation of George
Ryerse, bouuded easterly partly by Broad-
way and partly by the common and part-
ly by the swamp, and westerly by the
river. It will be observed that there are
no boundaries given on the north or south.
The quitrent received by this grant was
three shillings, but was subsequently com-
muted by a payment in gross to the New
York State government in 1736 in full ex-
tinguislunent.
The validity and effect’of the patent by
Queen Annc has been a frequent subject
-of discussion in the courts, and forms the
principal feature in the claim of title by
Trinity Church. Edward Hyde, Lord
Cornbury, the Colonial Governor through
whom the above grant wuas made, was a
cousin of Queen Anne, being a son of the
seconrd Earl of Clarendon. His term of
office lasted six years, and was characler-
ized by high Tory priunciples, and an in-
considerate zeal for the suppression of reli-
gious liberty. He was, besides this, a very
eccentric character, and was fond of mas-
gquerading in woman's elothes. A por-
trait of him so taken is still extant. In
a commmuuication by Lewis Morris to the
Secretary of State at Loudon, he recow-
" mendsa certain party for Governorin these
words: “ He is an honest man, and the re-
verse of my Lord Cornbury, of whom I
must say something which, perhaps, no-
body will think it worth their while to
tell, and tbat is his dressing publicly iu
woman's clothes every day, and putting
a stop to all public business while he is
pleasing himself with that peculiar but
detestable magot.”

- THE LAWSUITS.

The history of the various litigations
with reference to this valuable territory
is interesting both to the antiquarian and
the jurist. The heirs seeking *‘ their own
again,” in their persistent attacks upon
the venewrble sucerdotal institution now
in possession of thie debatable land, bave
presented to the courls for decision ab-
" struse questions on the validity of ancient
viceroyal patents, of acts of the Colonial
Assembly, and of ovdinances by the Brit-
ish crown—questions of adverse posses-
sion, of possession in common, aud of the
limitation of real actious, as well as of the
direct transmission of the title by convey-
ance. -

The city of New York has also put fo;-l

ward its claim, and the State has not been
idle in asserting its rights as owner pary.
mount, succeeding to the rights of the

British crown. Time will not adinit of .

more thau a hasty glance at some of thege
historical controversics. -

Since the possession by the Euglish of
the province of New York, and the intro-
duction theré of Episcopacy, therd had g41-
ways been considerable antagonisiu and
jealousy Uletween the followers of the
English Church and the Duteh descend-
ants adopting the principles of the Synod
of Dort. This feeling manifested itself
strongly against the corporation of Trin-
ity Church, which was supposed more
particularly to represent British influence
and power.

It was charged by their Disseutipg op-
pouents that the Trinity Church prdper-
ty was obtained from the crown by mis-
representation and deception; accordingly
some of theleading Dissenting citizens, in-
cluding Williamn Livingston, Jolhn-Morin
Scott, and William Smith, Jun., assisted
and perhaps stirred up Cornelius Brouwer,
a descendant of Mrs. Bogardus, to assert
his claims as part owner of the church
Jands.  The above-named gentlemen ap-
peared as counsel for him on the trial of
an action brought in his namme to recover
his share of the farn, which took place in
1760, Lefore Judge David Jones,of Quesus
Counuty.  After a trial which lasted two
days and almost two nights, the jury
brought in a verdict for the chuveh.

Relative to this trial we find the follow-
iug notice in the New York Mercury of
October 27,1760: “Last week a remark-
able Tryal, which hasbeen in the Law near
20 years, came on in the Supreme Court
here between the Reetor and Inhabitants
of the City of New Yorlt of the Church of
England, as by law Established, and the
family of the Browers, who sued for §?

acres of the King's farm; when the Jury,

after being out for 20 minutes, gave their
verdict in favour of the Defendants.”

Soon after this trial the church corpora-
tion made extensive leasing of the proper-
ty. We find the following advertiseruent
inserted in1763: “*To be let by the chiurch-
wardenus of Trinity Church, two hundred
lots of ground, joiniug the stockudoes, and
along the North River,for the term of 21,
42, or 63 years.” .

Another action was brought by one
Colonel Mulcoluy, and tried in the year
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1807. Malcoln set up a present posses-
sion. He cluimed that he took possession
soon after the Revolulioun, the farin being
then deserted. In the defense Trinity
Church claimed posscssion for sixty years
before that time under a tenant named
Vandenburgh. The gallaut colonel was
defeated, and the old adage was again ver-
itied of arma cedeit toge.

About the year 1830 a suit was brought
by Cournelins Bogardus for one-fifth of
one-sixth of the proceeds of the lund known
as the Domine’s Bouwery., The bill was
bused on the claint of Coruelius as heir
of his ancestor Cornelis, who died in 1707
seized of one-sixth of the farin, his brothers
Jouas apd Guns Roelotlsen having died
without issue. The plaintitlt cluimed one-
thirtieth by descent from him, and
averved that the chiurch entered under
Queen Aune’s deed,and became tenauts in
common with said Cornelis. The legal
doctrine iuvoled was the well-known one
that no statute of limitations runs as
azaiunst oue tenant in common in favor of
his co-tenant In possession, but that the
possession of one is the possession of all
of them. The plea in bar put in by the
church was that in 1703, Queen Anne, be-
ing in possessiou of said Dowmine’s Bouw-
ery, by the patent referved to granted the
isume to Trinity Church in fee-simple, as
above related; under which the church
corporation had held adversely to all oth-
ers and not in common; that it did not
enter ov cluim under any deed from Mrs.
Anneke Bogardus,or heechildren or helrs,
and never adwitted itself to be holding
in commou with then, and that even if
originally they were tenants in common,
it did now and for 130 years had held in
hostility to the other tenants in common,
thus barring their right. On the other
band, the heirs claimed that Queen Anne,if
she held any titleat all, held it in common
with the leirs, as did the Duke of Yok

“before her, and that her patent only con-
_ Veyed what sheactually had, i. e, five un-

divided sixtlis of the furm. They also con-
tended that Queen Anne’s patent was nei-
thersigned nov sealed, and that the church
was only in possession under a leuse giv-
en it in 1702, which continued in force.

That the church was in possession, therve-,

fore, either as tenant for years under its
lease, and could not disscize its landloxd,
or as tenanl in common with pluinti(f
under the deed of transport from the heirs,
and that therefore the churel’s pussession

was also plaintifl’s possession, 2r.2 nat ad-
verse to him, and consequeniliz that no
statute of limitations could invaildate the
plaintift’s claim. .

The court held that it was ant 2laputed
that Governor Lovelues: tonk, iz L.13 rapre-
sentative capacity for the D= oF York,
and claimed to take, the wheo’s <itle to
which title and elaimn Queea A-r2 sue-
cceded, and thuat leases werz .nmle by
subsequent Governors and s:hlz:ses by

ool

Trinity Church of the whele That
therefore, through the a~se ? the

title to the whole, as well us
session through its leaas,, tha (tls
the crown absolutely, and 1102 =52
common of only a purt. T
held that it made no diifer :nae
the patent from Quesn Anne
or bad; that the church enteis ‘
joyed possession under iz, and =7t 1ader
the deed of transport from i.-
conscquently its advers: poss«
was proved in faec*, wus of iz
barring all outstanding interes:s

The above case was towice ¢
on a demurrer to the plea of o
session interposed, and subser uer:
proofs taken. The case was &
versely to the plaintiffs on thz 2= raised
by the demurrer, and also on tlx 7ol
subsequently put in as to an adwzm: pos-
session by the church.

An action was also broughrt in 1324 by
one Humbert and other hinirs. in CLiz0ery,
against the chiurch, and deciizI .2 de-

’

murrer adversely to the complain.z s the
court holding that the statwie of Inita-
tions and adverse possession + z R,
This decision was affirmed by Lz Juirt

of Errors.

In that case the complainants +-<%z the
new ground that the Domine’s Z-vs or
the Bouwery was never pairt of t'.2 Drikv's
or Queen’s furm, and thervefor: 211 not
pass under the grant from Quz:z Lane,
but that Trinity Church was ziz=Is an
tntruder on the Bogardus reginn pes-
sessiou, except that in 1733 it Loz shs ong
the vight of Cornelius Bogarizs iz the
property for £709, and then wzz: ztoa
regular unvestrained possession. ®
pusscssiou was merels as tenazt 2w
moen with the other heirs,

It appeured in the evidencs :Zit the
cliwrel had never pat ou record 1Lz 230ve-
mentioned deed from Coreelius. and aad
kepl it somewhat secret. The el.izants
averred that the deed was cozezzlal bel

10 -
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cause the church feared that its legal cf-
feet would be to establish it as tenant iu
conumon with the other heirs.

The Cornelius above referred to as sell-
ing out was the ﬁ"'htmﬂ' Cornelius lxcu.m~
af ter alluded to.

Nine otlier suits were bmun'lnt in 1847
by Cornelius Brouwer in the Supreme
Coutrt, in which the plaintitl sulfered a
nonsuit.

In 1851 another system was tried, anda

suit was brought by oue of the descend-
ants of old Dr. Kierstede, who married a
daughter of Mrs. Bogardus. In this ac-
tion the State of New York was made a
defendant. It was decided in April, 1856,
adversely to the plaintitf. The claim of
Kierstedt was that there was an obliga-
tion, legal and equitable, on the erown to
restore the possession to the heirs of his
ancestor, and that this obligation had dc-,
volved upon the State of New York :
that the chureh was holding under a
grant from Governor Cm'nbu-.-_\' in 1703,
which was voild under the vacating act of
1699. " The plaintitt demanded that the
State be required to recover the lands
from the church, and then turn them
over to the licirs, and that a receiver of
the land; be appointed.

The court. on a demurrer to the com-
plaint, held that there wus no power in
any of the courts of this State to entertain
8 suit brought against the State, except
when specially authorized by statute.

The claiins on the part of the State to
the property have been on the ground
that the church held overas tenant of the
crown, and that the State had succeeded
to the rights and property of the crown.

A bill was introduced in the Legislature
of 1785 authorizing proceedings on the
part of the State to recover the property.
A remonstrance was thereupon sent to
the Legislature by the church, and the
. bill was mnever passed. A counter re-
monstrance on the part of the heirs sent
to the Legislature concludes with the forei-
ble reumrL, that *‘when the devil's king-
domn is in danger he roars the loudest.”

Recently, however, in 1536, the State
wole up again, and an ejectment suit was
brougzht by the State for a lot on Murray
Street, just south of the Domine’s Bouw-

ry, but part of the King’s farn.

The corporation of Trinity Church set
up 2s a defense its old plew of statute of
limitations, and also a seizure in fee by
the chiurch.  The case was tried before 2

jury, and the Shtc was nomultm] whicl,
nonsuit was upheld by tl.e Court of Ap.
peals in 1860, ‘

The Stale, in a recent case, claimed that
the graut from Lord Qornbur' in the
name of Queen Anne in 1705 was void,
because the act of 1702 was then in fmc.c
by which no grant could be made by 5
Colonial Governor for alonger p"rmd than
his term of office.

The court held that prima facie the
Iaud had been granted by the crowwy, and
that the evidence of the plaintitf showed
it; and that the adverse possession of the
chmdn, as against the State, was fully
made out; also that the reservation of a
quitrent to the crown in the patent wus
merely a mode of payment of tlu, consid-
er ttlou of the grant.

A claim was also supposed to exist in
favor of the city of New York. It waus
made a matter of research, and in 1867 was
submitted to the Cérporation Counsel, M.
O'Gorman, for his opinion. He rcpoxtcd
that the city had no claim whatever.

The claim was based upon certain sov-
ercign rights over the trial supposed to
have been continued in the State of New
York, as successors of the crown of Eng-
land, which had pussed to the city of New
York from the State.

It will be obscrved that by the charter
of Governor Dougan to the e¢ity in 1636,
and of Governor dMontgomerie in 1730, the
King’s fafm and the adjoining swamp
were expressly reserved from the general
grant to the city of all vacant and unap-
pxopu.lted lands.

The last great attack on Tnmh Church
was in 1571, A suit was brought b_\ Domi-
ne David Groesheck, in his comp]aiut al-
leging himself to be a Protestant minister
of the Gospe!l, against the officers of the
church.

The ground taken by the revervend
plaintiff was that he was a successor of
some of the original Dutch inhabitants

wlo were coxpouaton oun tle original es-
tablishment of the Episcopal Church in
the colony.

He claimed that there had btcu a per-
version and waste of the church proper-
ty,and charged its corporation’ with hav-
ing nerrlm.tcd to provide for the poor of
the p'uxah while patnpering the pride of
the worldly-mindad, and ** h.vm" up trea-
surcs on earth in bouds and niortgages
held over Episcopal chiurchoes™  He also
averced that the purposc of the founders
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of Trinity Church was to prevent the in-
crease of vice in the city of New York,
and not merely to support the *‘ parasites
of any sect,” and he claimed a right to
preach in Trinity Church as a believer in
the doctrines established at the Synod of
Dort, but was deprived of that right. He
averred also that the enrporation had vio-
Jated its duty in allowing “one Morgun
Dix,” who wasmade a defendant, to preach
that ** Protestantism, as a moral system,
was o failure,” and also for allowing said
Dix to say that * Luther perceived that he
had committed a gigantic error in advocat-
ing the Scriptures alone as a means of sal-
vation, knowing that the Chureli was the
instrument that should decide controver-
sies of fuitl.,” The plaintitl averred also
that the officers of the corporation had paid
said Dix a salary for uttering such blas-
phemies, and had allowed the services of
the Greek Church to be performed in
Trinity Church, and that the said Dix,
with the connivance of said oflicers, advo-
cated the establishment of institutions of
able-bodied young women in the parish
by means of the surplus revenues of the
church. The plaintitf therefore tlaimed
that a receiver of all the property be ap-
pointed, subject to the further order of the
court.

Other grounds were that the corpora-
tion of the churceh sought to gain political
weight, and treated the Legislature with
contempt. The defendants to this com-
ical complaint put in a demurrer, that is,
put in 2 defense, that even if the facts al-
leged were true, the plaintitf could not by
law have any recovery. Some of the al-
leged grounds taken in support of the de-
murrer were as queer as those of the com-
plaint. Amongthem were that the Church
of England holds the Catholic faith to be
necessary; that it does not use the word
Protestant; that by its Twenty-Grst Arti-
cle it ackunowledges the authority of the
Church in matters of faith; and that al-
though Luther is esteemed as a saint
among Protestants, in the calendar of the
English Church he is not so great w worthy
as St. Peter or.St. Clement, Bishops of

. Rome, or St. Bouiface, St. Sylvester, or St.

Gregory, also Bishops of Rome.

Other grounds in support of the de-
murrer were that the Synod of Dort ney-
er pretended really to settle any doctrines
of the Christiau communion, but only
Some miserable controversics between Cal-
vinists, Gomarists, and Armigiaus, and

that although certain representatives from
England were present at the Synod, they
had no power to commit the Church of
England to anything, and that its decrees
were never accepted in England.  Anoth-
er answer was that even if heresies bad
been preached in the chureh, that wus no
reason why the salury of the preucher
should not be paid.

The learned jurist who pronounced
upon all this tungled theological inel legal
matter sustained the demurrer, and therve-
by threw the plaintifl out of court. .

In the course of its opinion the court
profoundly remarks, as to the plaiutiff's
willingness to preach in Trinity Parish
Church, as follows: *I have no doubt
whatever in regard to such willingness;
nay, more, if such willingness were just
cause of complaint, or if;such condescen-
sion on the part of pluintift could be wmade
the basis of a good count upon which to
sustain an action, that there are nuny of
the clorgy in the ditferent Protestant de-
pominations who would most willingly
condescend in like manner to preach in
Trinity Church. Indeed, I am afiaid, if
such were the case, and this court had ju-
risdiction over the subject-matter, there
would be no end of actions against the
corporation.”

Lately an old Dutch Bible, alleged to
have belouged formerly to Mrs. Anuveke
Bogardus, has come to light in the hands
of one Miss Harvriet Van Atten, of Glen-
ville, Schencctady County, a direct de-
scendant of Pieter Bogardus, a son of the
old lady, to whom it js stated to have been
given by her. On the strength of this,
and a pair of gold ear-rings that once be-
longed to her venerable ancestor as per-
soual property, application was recently
made to the Surrogate of Albany for let-
ters of administration upon the persoualty
of Mrs. Anacke Bogardus.

The Surrogate of Albany County re-
fused to eotertain the application, and the
matter is now on appeal to the General
Term of the Supreme Court from his de-
éision. If letters of administration are
granted, the intention is to open the legal
battle again, and to claim an accounting
from Trinity Church.

This coveted tract of land has not only
becn the subject of foreausic battle, but
bone and sinew have been engaged in the
contest; heads have been brokeu aud shots
have been ficed in support of the cluims
of the redoubtible and indefatigoble helrs,

Ed
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Mars has been invoked where Mercury
has failed, and for years before and after
the evacuation of the city by the British
forces, in November, 1783, the community
was kept in alarm by the contests of the
contending factions :eclmw to obtain and
hold aa actual possession of the old
Bouwery.
Long before the Revolutionary war the
Trinity Church physical warfare was be-
" gun. We find that in September, 1773,
under orders from the authorities of the
church, a force of a dozen men armed with
broad-axes entered upon the premises n
where Cornelius E. Brouwer had located
himself on the tract, and tore down and

" burned the fences he had erected to de-
fine his possession.

In 1775 they also tore down the fences
about one Noblet’s house, a tenant of the
heirs, and destroyed Noblet's field of rye.
The wounds received in this campaign,
the chronicle tells us, were, an old woman
kicked in the eye, and her husband wound-
ed, who sought to get her out of the way.

" During the troubles consequent upon
the occupation of the British the old farm
had been ina comparatively deserted state.
The great contest for national liberty had
turned people’s minds from private inter-
ests. On the return of peace, howerver,
the premonitory rumblings indicating the
renewal of the great war for the old Bouw-
ery were heard.

The Council appointed by the new State
government for the temporary govern-
ment of the southern district of the State
took possession of the temporalities of
Trinity Church, and in January, 1784, is-
sued a proclamation against the conduct
of Cornelius Egbert and Everardus Bo-
gardus, Cornelius Cooper and Abraham
Brouwer, senior and junior, in intriguing
with and menacing the tenants on the land
of the church. It may be bere remarked
that this temporary occupation of the
property of the church by the State au-
thorities was after--ard made use .of as
an argument in the various claims made
by the State for the ownership of the land.
This proclamation was published in the
New York Gazette. To this the Bowar-
dus heirs responded by another published
manifesto claiming the legal title, and that
they and their grantors and tenants had
had possession until the church, taking
advantage of the absence of the Bogardus
family during the Roevolution, had taken
surreptitious possession, and they charge
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the church with pilfering their lunds, ang
“with an unconscientious defense at tlye
suit of honest title.”

The great champion and leader of lhe
barred- out heirs now appeared in Corne-
lius B. Bogardus, who had been absent
from the city during the war, and return.-
ed after the cvacuntiou. He now sound.
ed the humpet' call. A notice was pul-
lished in the New York Pucket of May,
1784, calling upon the heirs and repre-
seutatives of Annie Bogurdus, widow, de-
ceascd, to mect at Cape’s Tavern *‘on busi-

ness of high importance relative to the
lands called Domine's Hook which foz-
merly belonged to her.’

Bogardus now took practical steps for
the resumptiou of possession by the heirs,
so as to avoid the legal effects of an un-
disturbed possession’ by the church. He
accordingly establishied himself in a house
on the farm on what is now Chambers
Street; he put his son Heury on a part of
the farm at Reade Street, and his son John
in a house at the corner of Reade and
Chapel streets; he also located Lewis B.
Bogardus in a house near formerly St.
John's Square, in Hudson Street, which
was known among the heirs as the * pos-
session™ house.

Cornelius B. also took possession of a
pit of clay near Thomas Street, and daily
dealt it out at a shilling a load, and also
sold gravel from a pit which he had sur-
rounded by rails.

* Anp old lady claiming to be one of the
heirs, named Mrs. onml also toolk possés-
sion of an old house callnd the Fort, near
the foot of Reade or North Moore Strect,
surrounded by a breastwork and trench.
Here the old lady intrenched herself, and
stoutly maintained her possession from
the time the British left, in November,
1783, until 1787. We are told that she
drove away people who came to take
away any of the eartl from her fort by
pouring hoiling water on them.

The doughty Cornelius also located a
dozen more of his retainers on different
other portions of the farm as tenants. He
menaced and intrigued with the tenauts
of the church, and defied the temporal
and spiritual forces of the church to dis-
possess him.

In June, 1784, Trinity Church raised an
army of men and boys, under the com-
mand of one George Trenis, a Hessian,
and pulled down and burned the Bogardus
fences. The Trinity Church army then
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put up its own fences, which wero in turn

" burned by the Bogardus retainers. As a

bloody incideut of this war, ono of the
witnesses of the fight under oath stated
that oue of the church party, John Eer-
tine, ** took hold of Hannah Marsh, about
63 years of age, and pulled her down on
her knees, and attempted to put her hiead
into « pail of grog, first having dragged
her across the street, and gave her very
indecent usage othcrwise.”

There was also a fight in October, 1783.
One Joseph Forbes, who had been ap-
pointed by Trinity Church as a sort of
curator, undertook, with a body of retain-
ers of the chureh, to pull down certain
fences erccted by the Bogurdus heirs on
the land, one of the fences runuing to the
house occupied by one Georgze Hizday,
who was in possession as chdtelain in the
interest of the claimants. In perform-
ance of his dutics as keeper of the castle,
the doughty Higday fired his shiot-gun at
Forbes and his men, and wounded Forbes
and four others with bird shot. The vic-
tory in these contests rested, however,
with the church. o

" In 1788, the church corporation having
advertised for sule a number of lots ou the
tract, with a statement that the title was
as good as any in the Siate, the heirs pub-
lished the following proclamation?

“TO THE PUBLIC. .

“Whereas tho corporatiou of Trinity Chucch
have advertised for sale at the Mercbauts’ Cof-
fee-House, on thie 1st of April next, » number
of lots of lnudssituate in Chambers Street, Reado
Strect, and other places within the bounds of
Domioe’s Hook Patent, in the West Ward of
this city ; the heirs of Annekis Bogardus, and
those holding rights under thery, in the said
Patent, Do Heredy Give Notice that they are de-
termiued to support their claim to said lauds,
within the grant formerly made to the said

Anpekio Bogardus. And this notice is given
to provent any person hereafter fram preteml-
ing ignorance of the asuid cluim; which the
Heirs aud those deriving title from them are
determiued to suppuort.

“XEew Yok, March 31, 1735,

The result of all these troubles, howey-

er, was that all the Boziurdus fenees were
in time taken down or burned.

Lewis Bogardus’s wife and children were
driven from their house, duving his tempo-
ravy abseute, by the Trinity Church frrees.
The rails around the clay pit were turn
down, criminal charges were made of as-
sault and perjury against the Bogardus
retainers, the tenants were frizhtened
away or bought off, and, worst of all, the
doughty Cornelius himself sold his birth-
right to and was bought off by Trinity
Church for the paltry sum of £700, and too
humiliated to meet his former compan-
ious in arms, he therefore abandon«d not
only the scene of his contests, but the city.

The last one of all the heirs who held
out in the war of 1784-5, and who is en-
titled, on the Bogardus side, to all the
honors of war, was old Mrs. Broad, who
lived in the stockades of the old fort ut the
foot of Reade Strect. One of the witness-
es in the suit brought in 1830 testified in
1812 that he knew the old lady, and that
she continued in possession of the old re-
doubt, refusing to leave uutil the oppos-
ing forces actually dug it away, when she
made a fair compromise with parties rep-
resenting Trinity Church.

. Theheirshavenot yet succumbed. Meet-
ings are still held for the assertion of-their
claims. The contest will probably con-
tinue until through the natural increase
of the multitudinous claimants the pe-
cuniary resalt of even a successful attack
would be reduced for each to a minimum.

LOVE.

OVE was primeval; from forgottco time

%

Come bints of common lives by love made great,
In ‘{J:\stoml song or fragwentary rhyme,

ybile fades the fumne of many a warlike state.
Love lives forever, though we pass away;

Still shall there be hot bearts and longing eves,
Hyperion youths, and maids more fair than they,

oath lips and lingering hands and parting sigls,

When we have sanished and our simuple doom
Is blended with the themes of old romuace; .
Ay, from our dust young buds and flowers shall bloom
zI'o deek bright tresses in a spring-tide dance,
And be the nute sweet signs of love confessed
To passioned hopes, upon ¢ maidea’s breast. 8
N
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